CONSTITUTION AND BY-LAWS OF THE EASTERN OREGON BUILDING OFFICIALS ASSOCIATION CHAPTER OF THE INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL

ARTICLE I - NAME & ADDRESS

Section I

- 1.1.1 This organization shall be known as the Eastern Oregon Building Officials Association (EOBO) Chapter of the International Code Council.
- 1.1.2 Where elsewhere in these by-laws the abbreviation EOBO may be substituted for the full name.
- 1.1.3 The principal office of EOBO will be in Eastern Oregon.

ARTICLE II - PURPOSE & OBJECTIVES

- 2.1.1 The purpose of EOBO is:
 - 2.1.1(a) To bring together, develop and advance individuals who are in the building safety profession, in order to increase knowledge and uniform interpretation of all Codes related to the built environment.
- 2.1.2 To encourage the sharing of knowledge and experiences across jurisdictional boundaries in order to increase public safety.
- 2.1.3 To assist and educate the public on the importance of Building Codes to the health, safety, and prosperity of their communities.
- 2.1.4 To establish and maintain good working relationships with contractors, other municipalities, private agencies, and the public.
- 2.1.5 To research and review proposed building codes, legislation, and any amendments thereto, so that EOBO understands any implications and can disseminate this information to members or to the public.
- 2.1.6 To promote a high level of professional and ethical standards in the Building Codes profession.

ARTICLE III - MEMBERSHIP/DUES/VOTING

Section I

- 3.1.1 There shall be three classes of membership: Active Member, Associate Member, and Student Member.
 - 3.1.1(a) Active Member: Any person employed by a State, County, or Local jurisdiction whose primary duties are the enforcement of building codes and related ordinances. A retired or unemployed person qualifies to be an Active Member if their last place of employment was a State, County, or Local jurisdiction. An Active Member has all voting rights.
 - 3.1.1(b) Associate Member: Any person(s), firms or association engaged in building design, inspection, research, testing, code administration, education, or standards development who is interested in the objectives of EOBO. Associate Members have all voting rights.
 - 3.1.1(c) Student Member: Any person at least 16 years of age that is enrolled full- or half-time at an educational institution (high school, college, trade school, etc...). Student members cannot hold an elective office and have no voting rights.
- 3.1.2 Application for Membership
 - 3.1.2(a) Submit a completed and signed application form with payment of fees covering the current year's dues. Completed applications shall be hand-delivered to an Officer of the Board, or mailed to EOBO.

Section II

- 3.2.1 Annual membership due amounts will be established by resolution of the Board.
- 3.2.2 Dues will be billed yearly by the Treasurer, and shall be due by January 1st of each calendar year. Dues must be paid before March 1st to retain membership.
- 3.2.3 Any member not paying their dues by March 1st will be reported by the Treasurer to the Board. That member will no longer be considered active unless their membership is brought current.
- 3.2.4 Members whose dues are current shall be eligible for reduced registration fees at EOBO-sponsored events and seminars.

Section III

- 3.3.1 No member shall utilize EOBO for private gain.
- 3.3.2 Officers and members shall not receive any compensation for their services in EOBO, except for reimbursements of pre-approved expenditures on behalf of EOBO. Reimbursements must be approved by the Board after all applicable receipts or vouchers have been received.

3.4.1 All members are entitled to participate in meetings; receive agendas and minutes; and serve on committees. Only Active Members are allowed to vote.

ARTICLE IV – OFFICERS OF THE BOARD

- 4.1.1 The officers of EOBO shall consist of a President, Vice President, Secretary/Treasurer, and Immediate Past President.
 - 4.1.1(a) The Secretary and Treasurer positions will be held by the same individual.
 - 4.1.1(b) To be eligible for the office of President, the member must have served on the Board for a minimum of one full term, unless no other members meet this qualification.
 - 4.1.1(c) An Officer who was an active member at the time of their election may continue to serve their full term regardless of any employment change during that term.
- 4.1.2 Officers will be nominated by a committee consisting of the current EOBO President, Immediate Past President, and two other Active or Associate members chosen by the President. The Nominating Committee shall present their recommendations for Officers at the regular business meeting held immediately before the Annual Business Meeting.
- 4.1.3 Officers will be elected at the Annual Business Meeting by a majority vote of the eligible voting members in attendance, either in-person or by a video platform approved by EOBO. Notice of the nominees shall be mailed or emailed to all EOBO members by the Secretary or Treasurer at least one month before the Annual Business Meeting. No write-in nominees will be allowed.
- 4.1.4 Only Active and Associate Members may serve as Officers. No more than two Officers can be from the same jurisdiction.
- 4.1.5 In case of an unexpected vacancy of the Board, the vacancy shall be filled by nominations from EOBO members. In the case where no nominations are made, the vacancy may be filled by a majority vote of the remaining Officers. This nomination or vote can be confirmed or challenged at the next general meeting. If there are no challengers, the new Officer will hold their elected position until the next Annual Business Meeting.
 - 4.1.5(a) If a new Officer is nominated on a normal Board election year, they may choose to have their name added to the ballot for that year's Annual Business Meeting, and the process of Section 4.1.3 will be followed.
 - 4.1.5(b) Officers will be sworn in to the Board on normal election years, which will be odd calendar years. (e.g. 2023, 2025, 2027, etc...)

- 4.1.5(c) If a new Officer is nominated on a year that no elections are to be held, that individual will be confirmed at the upcoming Annual Business Meeting, and hold their position until an election year, unless the process of Section 4.1.6 must be initiated.
- 4.1.6 Any Officer may be removed with cause upon a majority vote of the Board at any regular meeting.

Removal of an Officer may be for, but not limited to, the following:

- Participation in activities detrimental to EOBO;
- Commission of a felony;
- Using EOBO for personal or financial gain.

The call for removal of an Officer must first appear on the agenda of the meeting.

Section II

- 4.2.1 The President and Vice President shall be elected for a term of two years, and may not exceed two consecutive terms in office. They may be re-elected for additional terms after a new Officer has been elected for at least one full, two-year term.
- 4.2.2 The Secretary and/or Treasurer shall be elected for a term of two years, and may serve as many successive terms as they are re-elected to serve.

Section III

- 4.3.1 Officers will receive no compensation from EOBO, except for reimbursement for expenses incurred conducting EOBO business. Reimbursements must be approved by the Board.
- 4.3.2 EOBO matters shall not be conducted for profit to any member, and no member of EOBO shall utilize its name for private gain.

- 4.4.1 Duties of the President: The President shall preside at all meetings of EOBO and appoint or replace Officers when needed outside of the Annual Business Meeting. The President shall perform any and all usual duties of an Association President. The President may also select a Secretary to assist them in the performance of their duties.
- 4.4.2 Duties of the Vice President: The Vice President shall assist the President in performing the duties of EOBO, and act on the President's behalf in their absence.
- 4.4.3 Duties of the Secretary: The Secretary shall keep accurate minutes and records of meetings; prepare, disperse, and maintain correspondence; and assist other Officers in their duties when needed.
- 4.4.4 Duties of the Treasurer: The Treasurer shall be responsible for receiving and dispersing EOBO dues and funds; depositing said funds in a financial institution approved by the Board; and keeping accurate records of all checks, deposits, and withdrawals. The Treasurer shall have the ability to sign & issue authorized checks in the President's absence. (Distributions over \$500 require approval from at least two Officers.) The

Treasurer shall make a report at the Annual Business Meeting and be able to report on current financial standings at any given time at the request of the President or Vice President.

4.4.5 Duties of the Immediate Past President: Serve as an advisor to the President and sit on Committees as approved by the Board.

ARTICLE V - MEETINGS & ANNUAL BUSINESS MEETING

Section I

- 5.1.1 EOBO shall meet quarterly at a time and location within EOBO's jurisdiction as determined by the Board. Meetings shall begin promptly at their set time.
 - 5.1.1(a) There shall be at least four regular meetings per calendar year.
 - 5.1.1(b) Meeting attendance may be in-person, or via approved online platform.
- 5.1.2 Members shall be given at least seven days' notice before any regular meeting.
- 5.1.3 Questions of rules of order shall be determined in accordance with Robert's Rule of Order, except as herein provided.
- 5.1.4 A "Majority Vote" means a simple majority of the voting members in attendance at any given meeting.
- 5.1.5 A "quorum" in order to conduct business shall require at least four Active or Associate members, one of which must be an Officer.

Section II

- 5.2.1 Special Meetings may be called by the President, with the consent of at least two other Officers.
 - 5.2.1(a) Special Meetings may be called by another Officer upon written request from at least five voting members.
- 5.2.2 There shall be at least five days' notice prior to calling a Special Meeting.
- 5.2.3 Meeting attendance may be in-person, or via approved online platform.

Section III

- 5.3.1 The Annual Business Meeting shall be held in the fourth quarter of each year. The Board will decide by majority vote the location, date, and time after taking input from all voting members.
 - 5.3.1(a) Meeting attendance may be in-person, or via approved online platform.
- 5.3.2 If the Annual Business Meeting is canceled unexpectedly without time to properly reschedule, a Special Meeting may be held by the voting members to conduct any pressing business, until the Annual Business Meeting can be rescheduled. Any business

conducted at this Special Meeting shall have the same effect as it would at the Annual Business Meeting.

Section IV

5.4.1 The order of business at meetings shall be as follows:

Roll Call of Officers

Approval of Minutes of Previous Meeting(s)

Communications

Reports from Officers and Committees

Program of Special Speakers (if any)

Unfinished Business

New Business

Election of Officers

Adjournment

ARTICLE VI – COMMITTEES

Section I

- 6.1.1 The Board shall appoint Committees as it deems necessary. Upon appointment, Committees shall be given a specific charge and function to perform. These Committees shall be either standing, or limited-duration as deemed necessary by the Board to carry on the goals of EOBO.
- 6.1.2 The President shall appoint Committee Chairpersons that will take minutes and attendance at all Committee meetings. The Chairperson will report back to the EOBO Board. A Chairperson may be removed after two unexcused absences.
- 6.1.3 Committee meetings shall be run under Roberts Rules of Order.

ARTICI F VII - ETHICS & ACTIVITIES

- 7.1.1 EOBO shall not directly or indirectly sponsor legislation or proposals pertaining to general municipal policies. All proposals on such matters shall be made as recommendations to the Board.
- 7.1.2 Officers and members of EOBO have the right to communicate with any person or organization to fulfil EOBO's objectives as long as this does not put them in conflict with Item 7.1.1.

- 7.1.3 Officers and members of EOBO shall place the utmost importance on public safety; consider their profession as an opportunity to serve society; maintain the highest standards of integrity and loyalty; and conduct themselves in a respectful manner as representatives of EOBO.
- 7.1.4 Officers and members of EOBO shall not use their positions to secure favors for themselves, their family, or their friends. They shall be fair in their dealings and not knowingly try to injure any individual, company, or association to gain any sort of advantage personally or professionally.
- 7.1.5 Officers and members of EOBO shall not accept gifts, offers, or favors that would influence them to discharge or unfairly conduct their duties.

ARTICLE VIII - FISCAL YEAR

Section I

8.1.1 The fiscal year shall run from January 1st through December 31st of any calendar year.

ARTICLE IX – AMENDMENTS

- 9.1.1 Amendments to the EOBO Constitution and By-Laws may be proposed by any voting member at any time. The proposing member must present their changes in writing, showing the Article or Section as worded, and as proposed.
 - 9.1.1(a) Language to be deleted shall have a double strike-through (example), and proposed language shall be in **BOLD**.
- 9.1.2 Amendments must be received by the Secretary at least 30 days prior to a regular meeting in order to add them to the agenda.
- 9.1.3 The Secretary shall send copies of proposed amendments to all voting members at least 20 days prior to the next regular meeting.
- 9.1.4 Proposed amendments must be approved by a majority vote at the meeting during which they are read.
- 9.1.5 If a proposed amendment is approved, it shall become effective immediately.
- 9.1.6 Areas of the Constitution and By-Laws that are amended shall have a vertical bar in the outboard margin showing the location of the change. A chronological list of all changes shall be on the last page of these by-laws with their dates of adoption.

ARTICLE X - DISSOLUTION

Section I

Secretary

- 10.1.1 EOBO may be dissolved only by action of the Board or by a petition from the membership.
- 10.1.2 A petition for dissolution from the membership will only be voted upon during the Annual Business Meeting. The petition must be made in writing, and received by the EOBO Secretary at least 60 days before the next ABM.
- 10.1.3 A copy or summary of the dissolution petition shall be sent to every member of EOBO at least 30 days prior to the ABM where it will be voted upon.
- 10.1.4 A majority vote at the ABM is required for dissolution of EOBO.
- 10.1.5 The Board may propose to dissolve EOBO as long as written notice is sent to every member at least 30 days before the next ABM. Dissolution will be discussed at this meeting, and the Board will make their final decision at that time.
- 10.1.6 If EOBO is dissolved, any funds remaining in the treasury after all accounts are settled will be donated to another Building Official's Association or sister organization located in Oregon, as decided upon by a majority of the voting membership.
- 10.1.7 Any real property or like investments that EOBO holds at the time of dissolution shall be managed by the Board.

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS UM DAY OF Ochber
(Signed) Sefful President
(Signed)Vice President
ATTEST: (Signed)

(Signed)	X Mug
	40 • //
Treasurer	

(Signed)

Member

BY-LAW AMENDMENTS:

9/6/24

Article III – Membership, Section 3.1.1(b)

Article IV - Officers of the Board, Section 4.1.5, 4.1.5(a), 4.1.5(b), 4.1.5(c), 4.1.6, 4.2.3, 4.4.5